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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
College of Western Idaho 
Nampa, Idaho 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the College of Western Idaho (the College) as 
of and for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, as listed in the table of contents and the discretely 
presented component unit of the College of Western Idaho as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011.  
These financial statements are the responsibility of the College’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.   
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the College of Western Idaho and the discretely presented component unit, 
as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 07, 
2011, on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
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knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the College of Western Idaho’s basic financial statements. The supplementary 
information as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. The supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole.  
 
 
 
Boise, Idaho 
November 07, 2011 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MISSION 
The College of Western Idaho is a public, open‐access, and 

comprehensive community college committed to providing affordable 
access to quality teaching and learning opportunities to the residents 

of its service area in western Idaho. 
 
 

VISION 
The College of Western Idaho provides affordable, quality 

teaching and learning opportunities for all to excel at learning 
for life.  
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College of Western Idaho 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
This section of College of Western Idaho’s annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the 
financial performance of College of Western Idaho (the College or CWI) for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010 which 
ended June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010.  This discussion has been prepared by management along with the 
financial statements and related footnote disclosures.  It should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its 
entirety by, the financial statements and footnotes.  The discussion and analysis is designed to focus on current 
activities, resulting changes, and current known facts.  The financial statements, footnotes and this discussion are 
the responsibility of management. 
 
Accreditation Agreement 
 
On July 1, 2008, College of Western Idaho and College of Southern Idaho (CSI) entered into an Accreditation 
Agreement in which College of Southern Idaho agreed to serve as the partner institution to College of Western 
Idaho through the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities’ accreditation process. This Agreement 
provides College of Western Idaho’s students the ability to earn transferrable credits and to receive financial aid. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
In fiscal year 2011, there was an overall increase of almost $13.1 million to the current fund surplus.  This 
increase was primarily due to a one-time appropriation receivable from the State of Idaho (SB1207) for $5 million 
to assist with enrollment workload.   
 
As compared to fiscal year 2010: 

• CWI received a one-time appropriation for fiscal year 2011 from the State of Idaho for $5 million as a 
result of Senate Bill 1207. 

• Net Student Tuition and Fee Revenue increased from $13.3 million to $21.9 million.  
• State, Federal, and Local Grant revenue increased from $2.1 million to $2.4 million.  
• Operating Expenses decreased from $36.8 million to $33.7 million. 
• Private gifts decreased by $7.5 million.    

 
The College has been diligently working towards being awarded Accreditation Candidacy status from the 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities in January 2012.  This is an important first step towards 
reaching independent accreditation.  Once Candidacy status is awarded, the College will be able to award federal 
financial aid directly to its students.  A portion of the increase in the current fund surplus positions the College to 
effectively administer federal financial aid starting summer semester 2012. 
 
In fiscal year 2010, there was an overall increase of over $21 million to the current fund surplus.  This increase 
was primarily due to a transfer from Boise State University of all Selland College of Applied Technology 
equipment valued at over $18 million, and a $7.5 million donation from the J.A. and Kathryn Albertson 
Foundation.   
 
 



 

4 

College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
As compared to fiscal year 2009: 

• Appropriations from the State of Idaho (the State) for general education decreased from $4.7 million to 
$4.3 million.  

• Allocations from the State for Professional Technical Education were $6.5 million. 
• Student Tuition and Fee Revenue increased from $1.6 million to $13.6 million.  
• Federal, State and Local Grant revenue increased from zero to $2.1 million.  
• Operating Expenses increased from $8.2 million to $36.8 million. 
• Private gifts increased from $2.5 million to $7.5 million.    
• The J.A. and Kathryn Albertson Foundation donated $1.0 million for scholarships. 

 
 
The College opened its doors to 1202 students on January 20, 2009.  During fiscal year 2010, College of Western 
Idaho served 3,437 students in Fall and 4,808 students in Spring.    
 
Overview of the Financial Statements and Financial Analysis 
 
The financial statements for fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010 are prepared in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles.  There are three financial statements presented:  
the Statement of Net Assets, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, and the Statement 
of Cash Flows.  These statements present financial information in a form similar to that used by most private-
sector companies.  These financial statements focus on the financial condition of the College, the results of 
operations, and cash flows of the College as a whole.   
 
Statement of Net Assets 
 
The Statement of Net Assets presents the assets, liabilities and net assets of the College as of the current fiscal 
year-end in comparative format with the prior fiscal year-end.  The purpose of the Statement of Net Assets is to 
present to the reader a point-in-time fiscal snapshot of the College.  The Statement of Net Assets presents end-of-
year data concerning assets (current and non-current), liabilities (current and non-current), and net assets (assets 
minus liabilities).   
 
Current assets consist of available cash and other assets that could be converted to cash within a year.  Non-
current assets are those assets and property which cannot easily be converted into cash.  Current liabilities are 
business obligations that are due to be cleared within one year.  Non-current liabilities are obligations that are not 
required to be satisfied within one year. 
 
The Statement of Net Assets is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and assets are 
recognized when the service is provided, and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide the 
service.     
 
From the data presented, readers of the Statement of Net Assets are able to determine the assets available to 
continue the operations of the College.  They are also able to determine how much the College owes vendors and 
lending institutions.  Finally, the Statement of Net Assets provides a picture of the net assets and their availability 
for expenditure by the College.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets are indications of either 
improvement or erosion of the College’s financial well-being when considered along with non-financial factors 
such as enrollment levels, the College’s property tax base, and the condition of the facilities. 
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Net assets are divided into three major categories.  The first category is Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related 
Debt, which provides the College’s equity in capital assets.  The second category is Unrestricted Net Assets, 
which are net assets available to the College for any lawful purpose of the institution. The third category, 
Restricted Net Assets, must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities that have 
placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets.   
 

2011 2010 2009

Current and other assets 35,542,935$    22,228,065$    9,337,882$      
Capital assets 26,446,795      26,592,168      14,378,718      

Total assets 61,989,730$    48,820,233$    23,716,600$    

Current liabilities 5,010,252$      4,872,138$      1,312,631$      
Noncurrent liabilities 388,023           357,075           248,898           

Total liabilities 5,398,275        5,229,213        1,561,529        

Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 26,446,795      26,592,168      14,378,718      
Unrestricted 28,541,448      15,147,814      7,290,302        
Restricted - expendable 1,603,212        1,851,038        486,051           

Total net assets 56,591,455      43,591,020      22,155,071      

Total liabilities and net assets 61,989,730$    48,820,233$    23,716,600$    

Summary Statements of Net Assets
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

The College’s total assets increased during fiscal year 2011 by $13,169,497, from $48,820,233 in 2010 to 
$61,989,730 in 2011.  Specifically contributing to the increase was the recognition of receivables due from 
College of Southern Idaho for student tuition and fee revenues, receivables due from the State Division of 
Professional Technical Education for claim revenues, and the receivable due from the State of Idaho for one-time 
supplemental funding.  The College’s total liabilities increased only slightly during fiscal year 2011 by $169,062 
from $5,229,213 in 2010 to $5,398,275 in fiscal year 2011.  While payables increased by $1.3 million, this was 
offset by the decrease in other liabilities of $1.1 million, because deposits held for the CWI Foundation were 
transferred during fiscal year 2011.  
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
The increase in assets is a result of senior management’s continuing emphasis on sound fiscal management.   This 
includes a “zero base budget” philosophy, where a new fiscal year budget begins at zero rather than being based 
upon the past year plus some percentage or additional amount.  This requires managers and their staff to critically 
review their respective program areas and identify what is essential for operation. During the year, quarterly 
meetings are held between the President, Vice Presidents, and Deans/Directors, with the purpose of reviewing 
expenditures and projecting needs for the remainder of the fiscal year, while taking enrollment trends into 
account.  Additionally, College senior management has focused on incurring ongoing expense only when 
necessary, and makes every effort to ensure that ongoing spending is well within actual revenue.  This includes 
the need to create operating reserves for the College to be able to weather any future downturns in state funding.   
 
The College’s total assets increased during fiscal year 2010 by $ 25,103,633, from $23,716,600 in 2009 to 
$48,820,233 in 2010.  These changes reflected the College’s acquisition of donated land and equipment, 
emphasizing the importance of facilities infrastructure.  Also contributing to the increase was the recognition of 
receivables due from College of Southern Idaho for student tuition and fee revenues, and receivables due from the 
State Division of Professional Technical Education for claim revenues. Additionally, investments increased due to 
an $8.5 million donation from the J.A. and Kathryn Albertson Foundation.  The College’s total liabilities also 
increased during fiscal year 2010 by $3,667,684 from $1,561,529 in 2009 to $5,229,213 in 2010.  The increase in 
the liabilities was largely due to deferred revenue for summer tuition and fees, and increased costs related to 
payroll.   
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 
 
Changes in total net assets as presented in the Statement of Net Assets are based on the activity presented in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.  All changes in net assets are reported under the 
accrual basis of accounting, or as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the 
timing when cash is received or disbursed.  Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for 
some items that will result in cash flow in future fiscal years.  The purpose of the statement is to present the 
revenues earned and the expenses incurred during the year.   
 
Activities are reported as either operating or nonoperating.  The College will always reflect a net operating loss in 
this format since state appropriations and gifts; the revenue streams that the College depends upon most 
significantly, are classified as Nonoperating Revenues.   
 
Generally, operating revenues are generated by providing services to various customers, students, and 
constituencies of the College, including but not limited to student tuition, fees, auxiliary enterprises, and federal 
and state grants.  Operating expenses are those expenses paid to acquire or produce the services provided in return 
for operating revenues, and to carry out the functions of the College.  Nonoperating revenues are revenues 
received for which services are not provided.  Examples of nonoperating revenues include but are not limited to:  
state appropriations, property tax revenue, investment income and other miscellaneous revenues.   
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

2011 2010 2009

Operating revenues 24,475,809$    15,662,020$    1,627,177$      
Operating expenses 33,680,553      36,756,172      8,266,523        

Operating loss (9,204,744)       (21,094,152)     (6,639,346)       

Nonoperating revenues
State appropriation 15,976,980      10,840,344      4,700,000        
Private gifts 21,528             7,530,582        2,500,000        
Local taxes 5,515,591        5,549,869        4,838,853        
Other nonoperating revenue 679,984           483,260           293,385           

Nonoperating revenues 22,194,083      24,404,055      12,332,238      

Capital gifts 11,096             18,126,046      13,000,000      

Increase in net assets 13,000,435      21,435,949      18,692,892      

Net assets - beginning of year 43,591,020      22,155,071      3,462,179        

Net assets - end of year 56,591,455$    43,591,020$    22,155,071$    

Summary Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Fiscal Years Ended June 30

 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets reflects an overall increase in net assets during 
fiscal year 2011.  Operating revenues increased by $8,813,789 from $15,662,020 in 2010 to $24,475,809 in 2011.  
This increase resulted from collecting more student fees due to increased enrollment.  Operating expenses 
decreased by $3,075,619 from $36,756,172 in 2010 to $33,680,553 in 2011.  The decrease in operating expenses 
was largely the result of one-time non-capital expenses incurred during 2010 relating to the transfer of the 
Professional Technical Education (PTE) program from Boise State University.  Supply and asset expenses 
specifically related to the transfer totaled $5.0 million in 2010.  Excluding those one-time expenses in 2010 
supports the fact that normal operating costs actually rose from an adjusted $31.7 million in 2010 to $33.7 million 
in 2011. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets reflected an overall increase in net assets 
during fiscal year 2010.  Operating revenues increased from $1,627,177 in 2009 to $15,662,020 in 2010.  This 
increase resulted from increased enrollment.  Also, the College received federal, state and local grants for the first 
time.  Operating expenses increased by $28,489,649 from $8,266,523 in 2009 to $36,756,172 in 2010.  
Approximately $19.9 million of this increase related to personnel costs, as the College continued to add faculty 
and staff.  An additional $4.6 million was expended for supplies, and $2.5 million was expended for facility rent, 
insurance and utilities. 
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

‐

5,000,000 

10,000,000 

15,000,000 

20,000,000 

25,000,000 

30,000,000 

35,000,000 

40,000,000 

2011  
$33,680,553

2010  
$36,756,172

2009    
$8,266,523

51%
51% 

22%

12% 
13%

16% 

10%
8%

13% 

2% 

2% 

2% 

13% 

15% 

34% 

12%

11%

13% 

Total Expenses

Operation & Maintenance 
of Plant

Institutional Support

Other

Student Services

Academic Support

Instruction

 
 



 

10 

College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

 
 

The above graph illustrates the impact of excluding $5.0 million in one-time non-capital expenses incurred during 
2010 relating to the transfer of the Professional Technical Education (PTE) program from Boise State University.  
This shows that normal operating expenses increased by $1,958,363 from $31,722,190 to $33,680,553 during 
2011.  Notably, the percent of expenses devoted to Instruction increased 6%, from 45% of total to 51% of total in 
2011, while the percent of expenses devoted to Institutional Support decreased 5%, from 18% to 13%. 
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
The final Statement presented by the College is the Statement of Cash Flows.  Its primary purpose is to provide 
relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the College during the year.   
 
An important factor to consider when assessing financial viability is the College’s ability to meet financial 
obligations as they mature.  The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the cash activity of the 
College during the year.  The Statement is divided into five parts:  the first section deals with operating cash flows 
and shows the net cash used by the operating activities of the College.  The second section reflects cash flows 
from non-capital financing activities.  This section represents the cash received and spent for nonoperating, non-
investing and non-capital financing purposes.  The third section deals with cash flows from capital and related 
financing activities.  This section shows the cash used for the acquisition and construction of capital and related 
items.  The fourth section reflects the cash flows from investing activities and shows the purchases, proceeds, and 
interest received from investing activities.  The fifth section reconciles the net cash used in operating activities to 
operating income or loss reflected on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.    
 

2011 2010 2009
Cash from (used for)

Operating activities (6,839,783)$     (13,829,233)$   (5,757,763)$     
Noncapital financing activities 15,600,983      25,032,399      10,220,245      
Capital and related financing activities (1,490,097)       (856,843)          (668,676)          
Investing activities 89,391             (964,077)          86,485             

Net change in cash 7,360,494        9,382,246        3,880,291        

Cash - beginning of year 15,427,284      6,045,038        2,164,747        

Cash - end of year 22,787,778$    15,427,284$    6,045,038$      

Supplementary disclosure of non-cash activities
Property acquired with accounts payable 328,785$         -$                 -$                 
Donation of assets 11,096$           18,126,046$    13,000,000$    

Fiscal Years Ended June 30
Summary Statements of Cash Flows

 
Overall, cash increased by $7,360,494 during fiscal year 2011 compared to a cash increase of $9,382,246 during 
fiscal year 2010.  Cash used in operating activities totaled $6,839,783 in fiscal year 2011 compared to 
$13,829,233 in fiscal year 2010.  One of the largest areas of change was  an increase in tuition and fee revenues, 
which was offset by a large increase in payments to employees.  Cash provided by noncapital financing activites 
decreased to $15,600,983 in fiscal year 2011, compared to  $25,032,399 in fiscal year 2010.  This was mostly the 
result of the gift from the J.A. and Kathryn Albertson Foundation in 2010.  Cash used in capital and related 
financing activities increased to $1,490,097 in fiscal year 2011 compared to $856,843 in fiscal year 2010.  More 
capital assets were purchsed in fiscal year 2011.   Cash provided by investing activity increased to $89,391 in 
fiscal year 2011 compared to cash used of $964,077 in fiscal year 2010.  This was mostly the result of transferring 
cash to investments during fiscal year 2010. 
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Cash increased by $9,382,246 during fiscal year 2010 compared to a cash increase of $3,880,291 during fiscal 
year 2009.  Cash used in operating activities totaled $13,829,233 in fiscal year 2010 compared to $5,757,763 in 
fiscal year 2009.  One of the largest areas of change was  an increase in tuition and fee revenues, which was offset 
by a nearly equal increase in payments to suppliers.  Payments to employees also showed a large increase.   Cash 
provided by noncapital financing activites increased to $25,032,399 in fiscal year 2010, compared to  $10,220,245 
in fiscal year 2009.  This was mostly the result of the Allocation from the State Division of Professional Technical 
Education, and a gift from the J.A. and Kathryn Albertson Foundation in fiscal year 2010.  Cash used in capital 
and related financing activities increased to $856,843 in fiscal year 2010 compared to $668,676 in fiscal year 
2009.  More capital assets were purchsed in fiscal year 2010.   Cash used by investing activity was  $964,077 in 
fiscal year 2010 compared to $86,485 in fiscal year 2009.  During fiscal year 2010, short-term and long-term 
certificates of deposits were purchased.  During fiscal year 2009, interest earnings provided cash. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The College’s investment in Capital Assets as of June 30, 2011 equated to $26,446,795, net of accumulated 
depreciation.  Investment in Capital Assets normally includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and 
equipment, library holdings, and infrastructure.   
 
The College’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2010 equated to $26,592,168, net of accumulated 
depreciation.   The College of Western Idaho received a donation of five acres of land, as well as buildings, 
equipment, and supplies on July 1, 2009 from Boise State University.   
 
Debt Administration 
 
College of Western Idaho had six operating lease obligations for instructional and administrative office space at 
fiscal year end June 30, 2011.  The College had no outstanding debt at fiscal year end June 30, 2011.   
 
The College of Western Idaho had five operating lease obligations for instructional and administrative office 
space at fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.  The College had no outstanding debt at fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.   
 
Growth and Expansion 
 
The College has experienced tremendous growth during fiscal year 2011.  This is evident by reviewing the 
financial statements which follow.  Beyond the financial results, other areas of growth deserve mention. 
 
Since its first offering of credit courses in January 2009, College of Western Idaho has grown in enrollment by 
over 600%. The College has quickly emerged as a comprehensive resource for the Treasure Valley by providing 
quality education that is easily accessible.  
 

Student Enrollment Spring 2009 Fall 2009 Spring 2010 Fall 2010 Spring 2011

Lower division transfer 1,202               2,546               3,342               5,127               6,150               
PTE -                   891                  1,466               1,150               1,158               
Total 1,202               3,437               4,808               6,277               7,308               
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

 
 
During fiscal year 2011, College of Western Idaho operated on seven campus locations: Nampa Campus, 
Professional Truck Driving Center, Canyon County Center, Ada County Campus, Oak Park Center, CWI at Boise 
State University, and Horticulture Center.  College of Western Idaho also operates at several off-site locations, 
including various high schools, businesses, and clinics. 
 
Future expansion will focus on the development of three main campus sites:  Nampa Campus, Meridian Campus, 
and an East Boise campus.  This long-term plan was based on providing convenient access to all residents of the 
Treasure Valley while increasing efficiency and reducing the cost of operations for the College. 
 
As a community college, CWI offers non-credit programs in three areas of education: Adult Basic Education, 
Business Partnerships/ Workforce Development, and Community Education.  
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Adult Basic Education 
 
Adult Basic Education includes: 

• Basic Skills Improvement 
o Reading 
o Writing 
o Math 

• General Education Development (GED) Preparation 
• English as a Second Language (ESL)  
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Business Partnerships/ Workforce Development (BP/WD) 
 
Business Partnerships/ Workforce Development (BP/WD) provides fast-track career training and customized 
business solutions. Public, open-enrollment access to classroom and online training is available in healthcare, 
construction, apprenticeships, manufacturing, business and professional, computers, emergency services, and 
more.  
 
 

 
 



 

16 

College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Community Education 
 
Community Education has grown its offering to more than a hundred options for Treasure Valley residents 
seeking personal enrichment and fun workshops. Last year the program added several new classes to help with 
personal finances, teen workshops, and i-Dream, a program for people with  developmental disabilities, just to 
name a few.   
 

 
 
Economic Outlook    
 
Idaho’s economy continues to fluctuate, similar to the national economy.  In July 2011, the State Division of 
Financial Management (DFM) issued its regular economic forecast which can be found at 
http://www.dfm.idaho.gov/Publications/EAB/Forecast/2011/July/iefjul2011.html.   
 
DFM also published its monthly Idaho General Fund Report.  This report found at   
(http://www.dfm.idaho.gov/Publications/EAB/GFRR/GFRR2012/GFRevenueReport_August2011.pdf) discloses 
both the monthly tax collections for July 2011 and the state economist’s updated revenue forecast.  The report 
finds that the rate of revenue growth has declined, but that fiscal year 2011 finished stronger than expected.  
However, even though state revenue may be modestly improving, state government needs in the areas of public 
safety and Medicaid, will also increase. Overall economic growth has slowed down, and the recovery appears to  
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College of Western Idaho 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
have softened.  Given this uncertainty, it is anticipated that the Idaho Legislature will continue to budget very 
cautiously in the upcoming session.  
 
CWI receives slightly more than 30% of its annual operating budget from state funds.  Consequently, CWI 
depends upon student tuition and fees for approximately 50% of annual operations.  This is significantly higher 
than similar public institutions. 
 
The College continues to experience significant increases in enrollment each semester. As this institution matures, 
more obligations will be placed upon its limited resources. In October 2011, the Northwest Commission on 
Colleges and Universities (NWCCU) visited the College’s campuses to determine if the College is ready for 
candidacy, the first step toward independent accreditation. One of the main concerns expressed by the NWCCU 
visitation team was the issue of sustainability, especially for a new college. 
 
During the onsite visit, college administration was asked many questions around the fiscal planning process and 
the ability to build fund equity.  The increase in fund equity the past two years has positioned CWI to be able to 
meet known obligations and expected expenses for the program move from the Boise State University campus, 
the increase in cash necessary to fund an anticipated float for direct federal financial aid to CWI students, and to 
fund deferred maintenance.  A portion of the fund equity will also be used to establish a reserve for unexpected 
expenses. 
 
CWI expects to be approved for candidacy in January 2012. In anticipation of being granted candidacy status, the 
College is preparing to implement the final systems needed to enable it to be a fully functioning, stand-alone 
institution, including the ability to award federal financial aid directly to its students starting summer 2012. 
 
While these are exciting milestones, the Trustees and administrators agree on the necessity to remain 
conservative. CWI will continue with planning and assessment for effectiveness, as it strives to fulfill its Mission 
and Vision. 
 
College of Western Idaho Foundation 
 
Continued support and contributions are vital to the success of CWI. Thus, the creation of a CWI Foundation was 
developed to partner with the community to raise funds from individuals, companies, foundations, and 
organizations to support the Mission of the College. The Foundation received its 501(c)(3) nonprofit status during 
July 2010.   
 
Contacting the College’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the College’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and potential 
creditors with a general overview of the College’s finances and to demonstrate the College’s accountability for the 
money it receives.  Questions about this report, or the need for additional financial information should be directed 
to Cheryl Wright, Vice President of Finance and Administration, College of Western Idaho, 6056 Birch Lane, 
Suite 200, Nampa, Idaho 83687. 
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College of Western Idaho 
Statements of Net Assets 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

 
 

2011 2010
Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 21,221,438$    13,602,684$    
Short-term investments 750,000           750,000           
Student fees receivable (net of allowance - 

FY11 - $432,038, FY10 - $179,427) 413,910           406,021           
Other accounts receivable 8,077,497        2,729,313        
Property tax receivable 2,469,973        2,356,215        
Prepaid expenses and other assets 715,985           294,332           

Total current assets 33,648,803      20,138,565      

Noncurrent Assets
Long-term investments 257,892           250,000           
Restricted cash 1,566,340        1,824,600        
Deposits 69,900             14,900             
Capital assets, not depreciated 13,826,993      13,756,020      
Capital assets, net 12,619,802      12,836,148      

Total noncurrent assets 28,340,927      28,681,668      

Total assets 61,989,730$    48,820,233$    

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,026,503$      417,391$         
Accrued payroll and related costs 1,733,382        1,579,358        
Deferred revenue 1,674,566        1,117,242        
Other liabilities 575,801           1,758,147        

Total current liabilities 5,010,252        4,872,138        

Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences 388,023           357,075           

Total noncurrent liabilities 388,023           357,075           

Total liabilities 5,398,275        5,229,213        

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 26,446,795      26,592,168      
Unrestricted 28,541,448      15,147,814      
Restricted - expendable 1,603,212        1,851,038        

Total net assets 56,591,455      43,591,020      

61,989,730$    48,820,233$                             
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College of Western Idaho Foundation 
Component Unit 

Statement of Financial Position 
June 30, 2011 

 
 

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,214,935$      
Cash and cash equivalents- restricted 7,182,836        
Investments 2,226,730        
Pledges receivable, net 5,902,114        
Construction in progress or by SPMIFA 196,663           

Total assets 16,723,278$   

Liabilities and Net Assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 132,099$         

Total liabilities 132,099           

Net Assets
Unrestricted 126,008           
Temporarily restricted 15,542,518      
Permanently restricted 922,653           

Total net assets 16,591,179      

Total liabilities and net assets 16,723,278$    
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College of Western Idaho 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

2011 2010

Operating Revenues 
Tuition and fees 22,247,186$    13,598,712$    
Less: Scholarship allowance (336,806)          (247,044)          

Net tuition and fees 21,910,380      13,351,668      

Federal grants and contracts 1,560,284        1,234,277        
State and local grants 844,294           897,055           
Sales and services of educational activities 160,851           179,020           

Total operating revenue 24,475,809      15,662,020      

Expenses 
Operating Expenses 

Instruction 16,993,791      18,882,380      
Academic support 4,101,425        4,636,077        
Student services 3,442,567        3,078,892        
Public service 411,235           398,321           
Scholarships 123,945           91,606             
Auxiliary expenses 109,914           162,440           
Institutional support 4,367,131        5,579,534        
Operations and maintenance 4,130,545        3,926,922        

Total operating expenses 33,680,553      36,756,172      

Operating loss (9,204,744)       (21,094,152)     

Nonoperating Revenues 
State appropriations 15,976,980      10,840,344      
Private gifts 21,528             7,530,582        
Local taxes 5,515,591        5,549,869        
State and federal financial aid 178,151           95,378             
Liquor tax revenue 200,000           197,500           
Other revenue 301,833           190,382           

Total nonoperating revenue 22,194,083      24,404,055      

Income before other revenues and expenses 12,989,339      3,309,903        

Capital gifts 11,096             18,126,046      

Increase in Net Assets 13,000,435      21,435,949      

Net Assets,
Beginning of year 43,591,020      22,155,071      

End of year 56,591,455$    43,591,020$    
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College of Western Idaho Foundation 
Component Unit 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2011 

 
 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Revenues
Contributions and gifts 66,312$          15,828,773$   922,653$         16,817,738$   
Contributed services 382,705 -                     -                      382,705         
Interest and dividends 7,965              34,178           -                      42,143           
Net realized and unrealized 

gain/(loss) on investments 57,213            45,109           -                      102,322         
Other revenue 4,019              198                -                      4,217             

Total revenues and gains 518,214          15,908,258    922,653          17,349,125    

Net assets released from
restriction 365,740          (365,740)        -                      -                     

Total revenues 883,954          15,542,518    922,653          17,349,125    

Expenses
Program support to 

College of Western Idaho
Scholarships 336,222          -                     -                      336,222         
Department support 29,517            -                     -                      29,517           

Support services
General operations 392,207          -                     -                      392,207         

Total expenses 757,946          -                     -                      757,946         

Change in Net Assets 126,008          15,542,518    922,653          16,591,179    

Net Assets, Beginning of Year -                      -                     -                      -                     

Net Assets, End of Year 126,008$        15,542,518$   922,653$         16,591,179$   
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College of Western Idaho 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

2011 2010

Cash Flows used for Operating Activities
Tuition and fees 22,459,815$    11,881,149$    
Grants and contracts 2,404,578        2,131,332        
Payments to suppliers (9,788,783)       (9,401,965)       
Payments to employees (22,076,244)     (18,618,769)     
Sales and service education 160,851           179,020           

Net Cash used for Operating Activities (6,839,783)       (13,829,233)     

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
State appropriations 10,628,796      10,840,344      
Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 21,528             7,530,582        
Local property tax 5,601,833        5,366,662        
Deposits held for others (1,044,971)       1,044,971        
Other revenue/expense 393,797           249,840           

Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities 15,600,983      25,032,399      

Cash Flows Used for Financing Activities 
Purchases of capital assets (1,490,097)       (856,843)          

Net Cash used for Financing Activities (1,490,097)       (856,843)          

Cash Flows from (Used for) Investing Activities 
Purchase of investments (7,894)              (1,000,000)       
Interest on investments 97,285             35,923             

Net Cash from (used for) Investing Activities 89,391             (964,077)          

Net Increase in Cash, Restricted Cash, and Cash Equivalents 7,360,494        9,382,246        

Cash, Restricted Cash, and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of year 15,427,284      6,045,038        

    
End of year 22,787,778$    15,427,284$    
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College of Western Idaho 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

2011 2010

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Operating loss (9,204,744)$     (21,094,152)$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

used for operating activities
Depreciation 1,635,470        1,735,459        
Donated assets under capitalization threshold -                       5,033,977        
Change in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable, net (7,889)              (2,179,790)       
Prepaids and other assets (421,653)          52,560             
Accounts payable 609,112           300,400           
Deferred revenue 557,324           709,271           
Other liabilities (137,375)          321,002           
Advances and deposits (55,000)            -                       
Accrued payroll and payroll costs 154,024           1,183,863        
Compensated absences 30,948             108,177           

Net Cash used for Operating Activities (6,839,783)$     (13,829,233)$   

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Activity
Donation of capital assets from Boise State University 11,096$           18,126,046$    
Property acquired with accounts payable 328,785$         -$                     

Reconciliation of Cash, Restricted Cash, and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 21,221,438$    13,602,684$    
Restricted cash - noncurrent portion 1,566,340        1,824,600        

Total cash, restricted cash, and cash equivalents 22,787,778$    15,427,284$    
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College of Western Idaho Foundation 
Component Unit 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2011 

 
 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets 16,591,179$    
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

from operating activities
Non-cash contributions (75,008)            
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (102,322)          
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Gift pledges receivable (5,902,114)       
Accounts payable 132,099           

Net Cash from Operating Activities 10,643,834      

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments on construction in progress (196,663)          
Purchase of investments (2,301,463)       
Proceeds from sale of investments 252,063           

Net Cash used for Investing Activities (2,246,063)       

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,397,771        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year -                       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 8,397,771$      
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College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Note 1 -  Significant Accounting Policies 
 
General Statement 
 
The College of Western Idaho (the College) was established after a supermajority of Ada and Canyon County 
voters passed a referendum in 2007 to establish a community college district. The College is governed by a 
separately elected Board of Trustees. College of Western Idaho is a public, open-access, and comprehensive 
community college committed to providing affordable access to quality teaching and learning opportunities to the 
residents of its service area in western Idaho.  The College serves its students and communities through the use of 
a variety of innovative delivery systems and offers a dynamic array of programs, courses and services. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The College’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with pronouncements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP).   
 
During the year ended June 30, 2011, in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 
the College adopted Statement Number 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. 
This statement amends GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity to provide additional guidance to 
determine whether certain organizations for which the College is not financially accountable should be reported as 
component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the College. 
 
As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by GASB, the financial reporting entity 
consists of the primary government, as well as its component unit the College of Western Idaho Foundation, Inc. 
 
The College of Western Idaho Foundation (the Foundation) was established in July 2010 to provide support for 
the private fundraising efforts of the College and to manage privately donated funds.  The Foundation is a legally 
separate, not-for-profit corporation incorporated in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho and managed 
by a volunteer Board of Directors. Under the Idaho State Board of Education’s administrative rules the 
Foundation must be independent of, and cannot be controlled by, the College. A memorandum of understanding 
between the Foundation and the College defines the relationship between the two entities in accordance with the 
State Board of Education’s rules. 
 
The Foundation is reported discretely in separate financial statements because of the difference in its reporting 
model, as further described below. 
 
The Foundation reports its financial results under Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 985-205 Not-for-Profit Entities – Presentation of Financial Statements (formerly 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117).   As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and 
presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation.  No modifications 
have been made to the Foundation’s financial information in the College’s financial reporting entity for these 
differences.   
 
Questions about the financial statements of the CWI Foundation should be directed to Jodi Davis-Gempler, 
Executive Director, CWI Foundation, 6056 Birch Lane, Suite 100, Nampa, Idaho 83687. 
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College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation 
 
For financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in 
business-type activities.   Accordingly, the financial statements of the College have been presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GAAP.  Under the 
accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been 
incurred.   
 
Non-exchange transactions are those in which the College receives value without directly giving equal value in 
return.  These include property taxes, federal, state and local grants, state appropriations, and other contributions.  
On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the period for which the levy is intended to 
finance.  Revenues from grants, state appropriations, and other contributions are recognized in the year in which 
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which 
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching 
requirements, in which the College must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and 
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the College on a reimbursement basis.  
 
The College has the option to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and 
interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, for business type activities, unless FASB conflicts with GASB.  
The College has elected to not apply FASB pronouncements issued after the applicable date.   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The College considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of 
acquisition to be cash equivalents.  Cash balances that are restricted and not expected to be expended within the 
subsequent year are classified as noncurrent assets. The College has some funds on deposit with the Idaho State 
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) and considers all such funds with the LGIP as cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
Investments 
 
State statute authorizes the College to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, the State of Idaho, or county, city 
or other taxing district of the State of Idaho, commercial paper, corporate bonds and repurchase agreements. The 
degree of risk depends upon the underlying portfolio. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fees charged to students.  Accounts receivable also includes amounts 
due from state and local governments or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable 
expenditures made pursuant to the College’s grants and contracts. Accounts receivable are recorded net of 
estimated uncollectible amounts. 
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College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Property Tax Receivable  
 
Property taxes that are levied for 2008, 2009, and 2010 and have not been collected as of June 30 are carried as 
receivables.  Assessed values are established by the County Assessor in Ada and Canyon County (the District).  
Property tax payments are due in one-half installments in December and June.  The District’s property tax is 
levied each November on the assessed value listed as of the prior September for all property located in the 
District.   
 
Prepaid Expenses 
 
Prepaid items include payments made in the current fiscal year for expenditures attributable to future periods.  
 
Restricted Cash  
 
In accordance with a lease agreement with one of the facility leases, the College is obligated to separately hold 
cash amounts sufficient to satisfy the tenant improvements paid for by the lessor. These amounts are reduced by 
monthly payments on the lease. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital Assets are stated at cost when purchased, or if acquired by gift, at the estimated fair market value at the 
date of the gift. The College’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more and an 
estimated useful life of greater than one year. Renovations and improvements to buildings that significantly 
increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized. Routine repairs and maintenance are 
charged to operating expense in the period in which the expense was incurred.  
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 10 
years for library books, 3 to 10 years for equipment, and 20 to 40 years for buildings. 
 
Deferred Revenue 
 
Deferred Revenue includes amounts received from student tuition and fees prior to the end of the fiscal year 
relating to Summer and Fall term.  These revenues are earned in the subsequent year.  
 
Noncurrent Liabilities 
 
Noncurrent liabilities are other liabilities that will not be paid within the next fiscal year. 
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Net Assets 
 
The College’s net assets are classified as follows: 
 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt – This represents the College’s total investment in 
capital assets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.   
 
Unrestricted Net Assets – Unrestricted net assets represent resources derived from student fees, state 
appropriations, and sales and services of educational departments.  These resources are used for 
transactions related to the educational and general operations of the College, and may be used at the 
discretion of the governing board to meet current expenses for any lawful purpose.   
 
Restricted Net Assets, Expendable – This includes resources which the College is legally or 
contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties. 
 

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the College’s 
practice is to first apply the expense towards restricted resources, and then towards unrestricted resources.  
 
Classification of Revenues  
 
The College has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating according to the following criteria: 
 

Operating Revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions that 
generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with the College’s principal 
ongoing operations.  Operating revenues include student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and 
allowances, most federal, state, and local grants and contracts, and federal appropriations. 
 
Nonoperating Revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange transactions, 
such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as nonoperating revenues by 
GASB Statement No. 34, such as state appropriations, property taxes and investment income. 

 
Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
 
Student tuition and fee revenues and certain other revenues from students are reported net of Scholarship 
Discounts and Allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.  Scholarship 
Discounts and Allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the 
College, and the amount that is paid by students and/or other third parties making payments on the students’ 
behalf.  Certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and other federal, state, or nongovernmental programs, 
are recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues.  To the extent that revenues from such programs are 
used to satisfy student fees and related charges, the College has recorded a Scholarship Discount or Allowance.    
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Income Taxes 
 
As a public institution of higher education, the income of the College is generally exempt from federal and state 
income taxes under Section 115 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state law. However, 
the College is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated business taxable income. The College did not incur 
unrelated business income tax expense in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 or 2010. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported 
revenues and expenses. Significant estimates used in preparing these financial statements include those assumed 
in determining the actuarial assumptions made in the other post employment liability and in the appraisals and 
valuation of donated land and equipment. It is at least reasonably possible that the significant estimates used could 
change within the next year.   
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.   
 
 
Note 2 -  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Operating cash is deposited locally and is carried at cost. Cash and cash equivalents are also held in the State 
managed Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).  Cash that is restricted in purpose and is not expected to be 
utilized within the next fiscal year is reported on the financial statements as restricted cash and as a noncurrent 
asset. Investments are held in certificates of deposit at various local banks. 
 
At June 30, 2011, the College’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted of the following: 

 Bank Balance 
Carrying 
Amount 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank deposit 2,971,968$      2,487,379$      
Change funds -                       4,652               
State Treasurer's Local Government Pool (LGIP) 1,162,453        1,162,453        
Money market 17,566,955      17,566,954      

Restricted Cash
Bank Deposit 1,566,340$      1,566,340$      

Investments Fair Value Percentage
Short-term certificate of deposit 250,000$         24.80%
Short-term certificate of deposit 250,000           24.80%
Short-term certificate of deposit 250,000           24.80%
Long-term certificate of deposit 257,892           25.60%
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
At June 30, 2010, the College’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted of the following: 
 

 Bank Balance 
Carrying 
Amount 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank deposit 2,243,353$      1,449,195$      
Change funds -                       3,689               
State Treasurer's Local Government Pool (LGIP) 12,149,800      12,149,800      

Restricted Cash
Bank deposit 1,830,187$      1,824,600$      

Investments Fair Value Percentage
Short term certificate of deposit 250,000$         25.00%
Short term certificate of deposit 250,000           25.00%
Short term certificate of deposit 250,000           25.00%
Long term certificate of deposit 250,000           25.00%  

 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the College’s deposits may not be returned to it. 
The College does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.   At June 30, 2011 and 2010, $7,892 and 
$1,993,352, respectively, of the College’s deposits were uninsured and uncollateralized.   
 
The Joint Powers Investment Pool was established as a cooperative endeavor to enable public entities of the State 
of Idaho to aggregate funds for investment. This pooling is intended to improve administrative efficiency and 
increase investment yield. The Local Government Investment Pool is managed by the State of Idaho Treasurer’s 
office. The funds of the pool are invested in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and U.S. government 
securities. The certificates of deposit are federally insured. The U.S. government securities and the collateral for 
the repurchase agreements are held in trust by a safekeeping bank. 
 
Credit Risk – Investments 
 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation. It is commonly 
expressed in terms of the credit quality rating issued by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization such 
as Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch’s. The College does not have a policy addressing credit risk. 
 
Three short-term Certificates of Deposit with maturity of one year or less were established at separate financial 
institutions.  Each certificate is covered by FDIC for $250,000.  One long-term Certificate of Deposit, with 
maturity of less than 4 years at June 30, 2011, was established at an additional financial institution and is covered 
by FDIC for $250,000.  The Certificates of Deposit are not rated by rating organizations. 
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss in fair value should market interest rates change in the future. Investments with 
long-term, fixed interest rates are the most volatile. The funds within the Idaho State Treasurer’s Local 
Government Investment Pool have an average maturity of one year or less, thereby minimizing interest rate risk. 
The College does not have a policy addressing interest rate risk. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
When investments are concentrated in one issuer, this concentration represents heightened risk of potential loss. 
No specific percentage identifies when concentration risk is present. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board has adopted a principle that governments should provide note disclosure when five percent of the total 
entity’s investments are concentrated in any one issuer. Investments in obligations specifically guaranteed by the 
U.S. Government, mutual funds, and other pooled investments are exempt from disclosure. 
 
The College’s investment policy has no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer.  
 
 
Note 3 -  Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable refer to the portion due to the College, as of June 30th, by various customers and 
constituencies of the College as a result of providing services to said groups. Accounts receivable at June 30, 
2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:  
 

2011 2010

Revenue receivable from CSI 1,922,653$      1,699,041$      
Federal, state, and private grants 5,965,984        1,030,272        
Other 188,860           -                       

Accounts receivable and unbilled charges 8,077,497$      2,729,313$      

 
 
 



 

32 

College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Financial Statements 
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Note 4 -  Property Taxes 
 
Idaho counties are responsible for collecting property taxes, assessing penalties and if necessary, sale of property. 
In addition, the counties maintain all the records and are responsible for remitting property tax amounts to the 
various taxing entities within their boundaries. 
 
All real property is assigned a parcel number in accordance with State law, with each parcel being subject to 
physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the appraised value during the years 
between physical appraisals. 
 
The assessed valuation of the property and its improvements is being assessed at one percent of “taxable value” as 
defined by statute. The amount of tax levied is developed by multiplying the assessed value by the tax rate 
applicable to the area in which the property is located. 
 
Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on January 1 of the year for which the taxes are levied. 
 
Taxes on property are due on the 20th of December; however, they may be paid in two installments with the 
second installment due June 20th. Penalties and interest are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an installment within 
ten days of the installment due date. After a three year waiting period, a tax deed is issued conveying the property 
to the County with a lien for back taxes and accumulated penalties, interest and costs before sale. 
 
Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and the 
tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation. Canyon and Ada 
counties collect property taxes for the College. 
 
 



 

33 

College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Note 5 -  Capital Assets 
 
The following are the changes in capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010:  
 

Balance       
July 1, 2010 Additions Retirements Transfers

Balance     
June 30, 2011

Capital assets not being
depreciated

Land 13,720,000$  -$                   -$               -$              13,720,000$  
Construction in progress 36,020           110,490         (39,517)    106,993         

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 13,756,020    110,490         -                 (39,517)    13,826,993    

Other capital assets
Buildings 11,160,662    -                     -                 -                11,160,662    
Building improvements -                     98,285           -                 -                98,285           
Leasehold improvements 174,466         -                     -                 -                174,466         
Equipment 1,415,780      846,231         -                 -                2,262,011      
Computer equipment 856,948         200,659         -                 -                1,057,607      
Books 66,368           10,054           -                 -                76,422           
Vehicles 205,700         186,788         -                 -                392,488         
Intangibles 1,482,921      37,590           -                 39,517      1,560,028      

Total other capital assets 15,362,845    1,379,607      -                 39,517      16,781,969    

Total capital assets 29,118,865    1,490,097      -                 -                30,608,962    

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings 562,249         562,249         -                 -                1,124,498      
Building improvements -                     2,749             -                 -                2,749             
Leasehold improvements 17,662           26,221           -                 -                43,883           
Equipment 331,816         386,078         -                 -                717,894         
Computer equipment 452,353         263,328         -                 -                715,681         
Books 3,114             6,721             -                 -                9,835             
Vehicles 60,467           75,431           -                 -                135,898         
Intangibles 1,099,036      312,693         -                 -                1,411,729      

Total accumulated 
depreciation 2,526,697      1,635,470      -                 -                4,162,167      

Capital assets, net 26,592,168$  (145,373)$      -$               -$              26,446,795$  
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Balance       
July 1, 2009 Additions Retirements Transfers

Balance     
June 30, 2010

Capital assets not being
depreciated

Land 13,000,000$  720,000$       -$               -$              13,720,000$  
Construction in progress 51,459           36,020           -                 (51,459)    36,020           

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 13,051,459    756,020         -                 (51,459)    13,756,020    

Other capital assets
Buildings -                     11,160,662    -                 -                11,160,662    
Leasehold improvements -                     174,466         -                 -                174,466         
Equipment 48,045           1,367,735      -                 -                1,415,780      
Computer equipment 577,261         228,228         -                 51,459      856,948         
Books 25,615           40,753           -                 -                66,368           
Vehicles -                     205,700         -                 -                205,700         
Intangibles 1,467,576      15,345           -                 -                1,482,921      

Total other capital assets 2,118,497      13,192,889    -                 51,459      15,362,845    

Total capital assets 15,169,956    13,948,909    -                 -                29,118,865    

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings -                     562,249         -                 -                562,249         
Leasehold improvements -                     17,662           -                 -                17,662           
Equipment 1,001             330,815         -                 -                331,816         
Computer equipment 181,032         271,321         -                 -                452,353         
Books 213                2,901             -                 -                3,114             
Vehicles -                     60,467           -                 -                60,467           
Intangibles 608,992         490,044         -                 -                1,099,036      

Total accumulated 
depreciation 791,238         1,735,459      -                 -                2,526,697      

Capital assets, net 14,378,718$  12,213,450$  -$               -$              26,592,168$  

 
 
 



 

35 

College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Note 6 -  Deferred Revenue 
 
Deferred revenue includes amounts recorded for student tuition and fees, and other amounts received prior to the 
end of the fiscal year but relate to the following accounting period.   Student fees represent 50% of summer 
semester revenues and 100% of fall semester revenues to be recognized in the subsequent fiscal year.  Deferred 
revenue consists of the following at June 30: 
 

2011 2010

Student fees 1,674,072$      1,116,748$      
Other deferred revenue 494                  494                  

1,674,566$      1,117,242$      

 
 
Note 7 -  Operating Leases 
 
The College is committed under various operating leases, primarily for office buildings and maintenance 
agreements. Lease agreements cover various periods starting September 1, 2008 through June 30, 2021, and the 
minimum annual payments range from $2,012 to $765,565. As of June 30, 2011, future minimum operating lease 
commitments are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Amount

2012 2,226,684$      
2013 1,876,148        
2014 2,030,345        
2015 1,930,356        
2016 1,959,216        

Totals 10,022,749$    

Rent expenditure for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were $2,084,160 and $1,927,246, respectively. 
 
Several Professional Technical Education (PTE) programs will move from the Boise State University (BSU) 
campus to Nampa in July 2012.  It is anticipated that four programs will remain at BSU:  Culinary Arts, Surgical 
Technology, Dental Assisting, and Early Childhood Education.  Lease costs for the new PTE facility have not yet 
been determined. 
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Note 8 -  Retirement 
 
Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho  
 
The Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI), a cost sharing multiple-employer public retirement 
system, was created by the Idaho State Legislature. It is a defined benefit plan requiring that both the members 
and the employer contribute. The plan provides benefits based on members’ years of service, age, and 
compensation. In addition, the benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or 
beneficiaries. The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions is established in Idaho Code. Designed as a 
mandatory system for eligible state and school district employees, the legislation provided for political 
subdivisions to participate by contractual agreement with PERSI. Financial reports for the plan are available from 
PERSI upon request. 
 
After five years of credited service, members become fully vested in retirement benefits earned to date. Members 
are eligible for retirement benefits upon attainment of the ages specified for their employment classification. For 
each month of credited service allowance is 2.0% of the average monthly salary for the highest consecutive 42 
months. 
 
The contribution requirements of the College of Western Idaho and its employees are established and may be 
amended by the PERSI Board of Trustees.  
 
Contributions for the three years ended June 30, are as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2009
PERSI
College required contribution rate 10.39% 10.39% 10.39%
Percentage of covered payroll for employees 6.23% 6.23% 6.23%
College contributions required and paid 290,154$         286,214$         67,995$           

 
Optional Retirement Plan  
 
Effective July 1, 1997, the Idaho State Legislature authorized the Idaho State Board of Education to establish an 
Optional Retirement Plan (ORP), a defined contribution plan, for faculty and exempt employees. The employee 
contribution requirement for the ORP is based on a percentage of total payroll. Employer contributions are 
determined by the State of Idaho. 
 
New faculty and exempt employees automatically enroll in the ORP and select their vendor option. Vendor 
options include Teachers Insurance and Annuity Associations – College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF) 
and Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company (VALIC). 
 
Participants are immediately fully vested in the ORP. Retirement benefits are available either as a lump sum or 
any portion thereof upon attaining 62 years of age.  
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Contributions for the two years ended June 30, were as follows: 
 

2011 2010
ORP
College contribution rate 7.81% 7.81%
Employee contribution rate 6.97% 6.97%
College contribution  726,761$         629,766$         

Although enrollees in the ORP no longer belong to PERSI, the College is required to contribute to PERSI 3.83% 
of the annual covered payroll. These annual supplemental payments are required through July 1, 2011. The 
College of Western Idaho contributions required and paid were $342,000 and $304,458, respectively for the years 
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. This amount is not included in the regular College PERSI contribution discussed 
previously. 
 
Termination Benefits   
 
Employees who qualify for retirement under PERSI or ORP are eligible to use 50% of the cash value (maximum 
600 hours) of their unused sick leave to continue their medical insurance coverage through the College. The 
College partially funds these obligations by depositing .65% of the employees’ gross payroll with PERSI who 
administers the plan as a cost sharing, multiple-employer plan.  The total contributions for the years ended June 
30, 2011 and 2010 were $78,780 and $68,933, respectively. 
 
PERSI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information.  That report may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho, P.O. Box 
83720, Boise, Idaho 83720-0078. 
 
 
Note 9 -  Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions 
 
Summary of Plans 
 
The College of Western Idaho (CWI) participates in other postemployment benefit plans relating to health and 
disability administered by the State of Idaho as agent multiple-employer defined benefit plans.  The Life 
Insurance benefit is a single-employer defined benefit plan.  Idaho Code, Sections 67-5760 to 67-5767 and 72-
1335, establishes the benefits and contribution obligations.  Each of these benefits is provided by CWI to eligible 
retired or disabled employees.  The most recent actuarial valuation is as of July 30, 2010.  CWI has not set aside 
any assets to pay future benefits; CWI funds these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.  Details of the plans can be 
found in the Comprehensive Annual Report of the State of Idaho, which may be obtained as follows: 
 
Office of the Idaho State Controller 
700 W State Street, 4th Floor 
Boise, ID  83702 
P.O. Box 83720 
Boise, ID  83720-0011 
www.sco.idaho.gov 
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Plan Descriptions and Funding Policy 
 
Retiree Healthcare Plan 
 
A retired employee of CWI who is eligible to retire under the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho 
(PERSI) may elect to purchase retiree health insurance coverage for themselves and eligible dependents.  CWI 
employees must enroll within 60 days of the date of their retirement. Additionally, the unreduced PERSI monthly 
benefit at the time of retirement must meet or exceed the monthly cost of single retiree health insurance coverage, 
or employees must have 10 or more years (20,800 or more hours) of credited state administered service.  An 
officer or employee must have been an active employee on or before June 30, 2009, and retire directly from state 
administered service.  Coverage is not available to Medicare-eligible retirees or their Medicare-eligible 
dependents.  Retirees eligible for medical health insurance pay the majority of the premium cost; however, the 
retiree plan costs are subsidized by the active employee plan.  The maximum benefit is $1,860 per retiree per year.  
CWI contributed $16.44 per active employee per month towards the retiree premium cost.  
 
Long-Term Disability Plan 
 
Disabled employees are defined as being unable to perform each of the substantial and material duties of the job 
for which they were hired and unable to earn more than 70 percent of their monthly salary for the first 30 months 
of disability.  If after 30 months the employee is unable to perform any job for which they are reasonably 
qualified by experience, education, or training, and unable to earn more than 60 percent of their monthly salary 
the employee is considered totally disabled.  To qualify for long-term disability benefits, the waiting period of the 
longer of 26 weeks of continuous total disability or exhaustion of accrued sick leave must be met.   
 
The plan provides long-term disability income benefits to active employees who become disabled, generally up to 
a maximum age of 70.  The gross benefit equals 60 percent of monthly pre-disability salary or $4,000 whichever 
is less.  The benefit does not increase with inflation and may be offset by other sources of income such as Social 
Security, Workers’ Compensation, unemployment benefits, and certain retirement benefits.  The State is self-
insured for employees who became disabled prior to July 1, 2003; the State pays 100 percent of the cost of this 
benefit.  The amount of the contribution is based on active claims and the number of insured individuals. 
 
Employees disabled on or after July 1, 2003, are insured by Principal Life Insurance Company and the obligation 
for the payment of benefits has been effectively transferred.  CWI pays 100 percent of the cost of the premiums.  
The CWI contribution rate for the period was 0.324 percent of payroll in fiscal year 2011.  This portion of the 
long-term disability income benefit is not included in the actuarial estimate as this is considered an insured 
benefit. 
 
For up to 30 months following the date of disability, an employee is entitled to continue healthcare coverage 
under the State plan.   CWI pays 100 percent of CWI’s share of medical and dental premiums while the employee 
remains disabled.  The employee is required to pay the normal active employee contribution for the plan and rate 
category in which the employee is enrolled.  CWI’s contribution for the period was $6.96 per active employee per 
month in fiscal year 2011.   
 
This plan also provides basic life insurance and dependent life coverage to disabled employees, generally up to a 
maximum age of 70.  The life insurance benefit amount is generally 100 percent of annual salary, but not less than 
$20,000.  In addition, a $2,000 life insurance benefit is provided for spouses, and a $1,000 life insurance benefit is 
provided for dependent children.  These benefits do not increase with inflation.  CWI pays 100 percent of the cost 
of premiums; the contribution is actuarially determined based on actual claims experience. 
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Retiree Life Insurance Plan  
 
This plan provides basic life insurance for certified retired employees.  In general, the employee must have 
completed at least 30 years of credited service or the sum of his/her age and years of credited service must total at 
least 80 to qualify for this benefit.  Eligible retirees receive basic life insurance coverage equal to 100 percent of 
their annual salary at retirement.  The College pays 100 percent of the cost of basic life insurance for eligible 
retirees.  The College’s contribution for the period as a percent of payroll was 1.177% for retirees under age 65, 
.0894% for retirees between the ages of 65 and 69, and .0600% for retirees over age 70. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost  
 
The Annual OPEB Cost (AOC) is actuarially determined based on the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of 
the employer in accordance with GASB Statement Nos. 43 and 45.  The following table illustrates the annual 
OPEB cost, the amount of contributions made, the increase (decrease) in the net OPEB obligation (NOO), and the 
NOO (funding excess) for the current year:   
 

Retiree 
Healthcare Plan Healthcare Life Insurance

Annual OPEB Cost
Annual required contribution 64,000$           21,000$           12,000$           
Interest on net OPEB obligation 18,000             1,000               -                       
Adjustment to annual required contribution (27,000)            (1,000)              -                       

Total Annual OPEB cost 55,000             21,000             12,000             

Contributions Made (25,000)            (18,000)            (18,000)            

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 30,000             3,000               (6,000)              
Net OPEB obligation (funding excess) - 

beginning of year 13,000             9,000               (1,000)              
Net OPEB obligation (funding excess) - 

end of year 43,000$           12,000$           (7,000)$            

Percentage of AOC contributed 44.63% 85.11% 148.71%

2011 Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Long-term Disability Plan
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Retiree 
Healthcare Plan Healthcare Life Insurance

Annual OPEB Cost
Annual required contribution 39,000$           20,000$           8,000$             
Interest on net OPEB obligation 14,000             -                       -                       
Adjustment to annual required contribution (19,000)            -                       -                       

Total Annual OPEB cost 34,000             20,000             8,000               

Contributions Made (20,000)            (11,000)            (10,000)            

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 14,000             9,000               (2,000)              
Net OPEB obligation (funding excess) - 

beginning of year (1,000)              -                       1,000               
Net OPEB obligation (funding excess) - 

end of year 13,000$           9,000$             (1,000)$            

Percentage of AOC contributed 58.58% 55.65% 107.55%

2010 Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Long-term Disability Plan
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Annual OPEB Cost Comparison 
 
The following table compares the annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed and the net 
OPEB obligation (funding excess) for the current and two prior years. 
 

Retiree 
Healthcare Plan Healthcare Life Insurance

Annual OPEB Cost 2011 55,000$           21,000$           12,000$           
2010 34,000             20,000             8,000               
2009 6,000               3,000               2,000               

Percentage of AOC contributed 2011 44.63% 85.11% 148.71%
2010 58.58% 55.65% 107.55%
2009 111.02% 96.06% 147.37%

Net OPEB Obligation (Funding 2011 43,000$           12,000$           (7,000)$            
Excess) - end of year 2010 13,000             9,000               (1,000)              

2009 (1,000)              -                       (1,000)              

 Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation Comparison
Long-term Disability Plan

Funded Status and Funding Progress  
 
The following table illustrates the funded status and the funding progress for CWI:   
 

Retiree 
Healthcare Plan Healthcare Life Insurance

Actuarial Valuation Date 7/1/2010 7/1/2010 7/1/2010
(1) Actuarial Value of Assets -$                 -$                 -$                 
(2) Accrued Liability (AAL) 382,000$         138,000$         154,000$         
(3) Unfunded AAL (UAAL) (2)-(1) 382,000$         138,000$         154,000$         
(4) Funded Ratios (1) : (2) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
(5) Annual Covered Payroll 10,818,000$    10,818,000$    10,818,000$    
(6) UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll (3) : (5) 3.53% 1.28% 1.42%

Funded Status and Funding Progress
Long-term Disability Plan
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  
 
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, 
presented as required supplementary information immediately following the notes to the financial statements 
contains multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.  Calculations are based on the types of benefits 
provided under the terms of the plan at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the 
employer and plan members.  Any variations in future experience from that expected from these assumptions will 
result in corresponding changes in the estimated costs of the benefits.  The projection of benefits for financial 
reporting purposes does not incorporate the potential effects of legal funding limitations on the pattern of cost 
sharing between the employer and plan members in the future.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term 
perspective and actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.   
 
The following table presents the significant methods and assumptions for all plans:   
 

Retiree 
Healthcare Plan Healthcare Life Insurance

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit 
Credit

Projected Unit 
Credit

Projected Unit 
Credit

Amortization Method  Level 
Percentage of 

Payroll 

 Level 
Percentage of 

Payroll 

 Level 
Percentage of 

Payroll 

Amortization Period  11 years, 
Closed  30 years, Open  30 years, Open 

Assumptions:
Inflation rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Investment return 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
OPEB increases N/A N/A N/A
Projected salary increases 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Healthcare cost initial trend rate 10.00% 10.00% N/A
Healthcare cost ultimate trend rate 5.00% 5.00% N/A

Long-term Disability Plan
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Note 10 -  Risk Management and Workers’ Compensation 
 
The College faces risks of loss from: (a) damage and loss to property and contents, (b) employee torts, (c) 
professional liability; i.e., errors and omissions, and (d) environmental damage.  The College participates in the 
Idaho Counties Risk Management Program (ICRMP).  Payments are made to the risk management fund based on 
rates determined by factors including student population, payroll, and physical assets such as buildings and 
vehicles.     
 
Commercial Insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from worker’s compensation due to employee 
injuries. Payments made to the State Insurance Fund are based on a quarterly gross payroll multiplied by the 
current rate.  Premiums are billed quarterly throughout the fiscal year beginning July 1.  Premiums are then 
adjusted as necessary within the first quarter of the subsequent fiscal year.  The College billed premiums were 
$79,571 and $74,109 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
 
Note 11 -  Related Party Transactions 
 
The College of Western Idaho Foundation (Foundation) provides scholarships to the College based on the terms 
of the donations. The Foundation also provides various departmental and program support.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2011, the Foundation provided scholarship support of $336,222 and departmental and program support 
of $29,518.  There was no such support during the year ended June 30, 2010.  During the year ended June 30, 
2011, the College provided various services and materials to the Foundation which totaled $382,705.  There was 
no such support during the year ended June 30, 2010. 
 
The College has not yet met the requirement for independent accreditation. Thus, the College currently delivers 
college credit instruction, certificates and degrees through its memorandum of understanding with the College of 
Southern Idaho (CSI). CSI is accredited through The Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities. The 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities is a regional postsecondary accrediting agency recognized 
by the U.S. Department of Education and the Council for Higher Education Accreditation. Credits, certificates 
and degrees earned at the College appear on CSI transcripts and are transferable to four year institutions, subject 
to the specific policies of those institutions.  Federal financial aid for CWI students is awarded by the U.S. 
Department of Education through College of Southern Idaho. As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, CWI had a 
receivable from CSI of $1,922,653 and $1,699,041, respectively, and a payable to CSI of $193,511 and $135,513, 
respectively. 
 
Deferred revenue due from CSI for summer semester student tuition and fees was $1,429,019 and $955,839 in 
2011 and 2010, respectively.  Deferred revenue due from CSI for fall semester student tuition and fees was 
$39,258 and $44,888 for 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
Through a separate memorandum of understanding, CSI operates the CWI Bookstore.  CSI provides all 
inventories, manages the book ordering and buy-backs, establishes the sales and return policy, as well as the point 
of sale system.  CWI provides the facilities, and funds the Bookstore Manager and Assistant Retail Manager 
position.  Currently, 100% of the Bookstore profits belong to CSI.  Beginning in April 2011, CSI pays CWI 
$10,000 per month to contribute toward the costs of operating the Bookstore. 
 
CWI acts as the fiscal agent for seven State Division of Professional Technical Education student organizations.  
The College holds operating funds on their behalf in the amount of $181,363 and $183,017 for 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.  All expenses and revenue run though the College, and are reflected on Statement of Net Assets as 
Current Other Liabilities. 
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Note 12 -  Contingencies and Legal Matters 
 
In the normal course of business, the College has various commitments and contingent liabilities, which are not 
reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The College is not a defendant in litigation arising from the 
normal course of operations.  Based on present knowledge, the College’s management believes that any current 
commitments, contingent liabilities, or legal proceedings will not materially affect the financial position of the 
College. 
 
 
Note 13 -  Construction and other Significant Commitments 
 
At June 30, 2011, the College had several uncompleted construction contracts that will be completed during fiscal 
year 2012. The remaining commitment on these construction contracts was approximately $353,742. 
 

Capital Projects:
Nampa Campus Parking Lot 177,360$         
Aspen Building Project 19,886             
Website Design 22,140             

Non Capital Projects:
Nampa Campus Parking Lot 149                  
Aspen Building Project 134,207           

353,742$         

 
Note 14 -  Component Unit 
 
College of Western Idaho Foundation, Inc. 
 
Foundation Operations and Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Foundation Operations 
 
The College of Western Idaho Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is discretely presented within the financial 
statements as a component unit.   The Foundation was established in July 2010 to provide support for the private 
fundraising efforts of College of Western Idaho (the College) and to manage privately donated funds. The 
Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation incorporated in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho and 
managed by a volunteer Board of Directors. Under the Idaho State Board of Education’s administrative rules the 
Foundation must be independent of, and cannot be controlled by, the College. A memorandum of understanding 
between the Foundation and the College defines the relationship between the two entities in accordance to the 
State Board of Education’s rules. 
 
The Foundation’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with standards set by the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB).  FASB standards require three classes of net assets:  unrestricted, temporarily restricted, 
and permanently restricted instead of reporting by fund as is done under GASB standards.  Other differences 
include criteria for recognizing in-kind donations, and the presentation of information. 
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Endowment 
 
The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 24 individual funds established for a variety of purposes. 
The endowment consists of donor-restricted endowment funds.  As required by generally accepted accounting 
principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based upon the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
 
The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds 
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-
restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  As a result of this interpretation, 
the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of the gifts donated to the 
permanent endowment, and (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment.  The remaining portion of 
the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as 
temporarily net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditures by the Foundation in a manner that is 
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Foundation 
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted 
endowment funds: 
 

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund or endowment 
(2) The purposes of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund  
(3) General economic conditions 
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation 
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments 
(6) Other resources of the Foundation 
(7) The investment policies of the Foundation 

 
From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual endowment funds may fall below the level 
that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Foundation to maintain as a fund of perpetual duration.  The corpus 
balance of the endowment was $922,653 as of June 30, 2011.   
 
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a 
predictable stream of funding to programs and scholarships supported by its endowment while seeking to 
maintain the fair value of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds 
that the Foundation must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s).  Under this policy, as approved by 
the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to provide both a 
reasonably predicted income stream and principle appreciation that exceeds inflation. The Foundation expects its 
endowment funds, over time, to provide an average minimum rate of return equal to or greater than the 
Foundation’s spending rate percentage and management fee. 
 
To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return strategy in which 
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield 
(interest and dividends).  The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation to achieve its long-term return 
objectives within the prudent risk constraints.  
 
The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for annual distribution 4.5% of its endowment fund’s average fair 
value over the prior 12 quarters through the calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in which the distributions  
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College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
are planned. In establishing this policy, the Foundation considered the long-term expected return on its 
endowment. Accordingly, over the long-term, the Foundation expects the current spending policy to allow its  
endowment to grow at the rate of inflation.  This is consistent with objectives to maintain the principal of the 
endowment assets in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real growth through new 
gifts and investment return. 
 
Investments  
 
Investments at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following: 
 

2011

Investments securities
Equities 1,311,205$     
Bond Funds 667,965         
Real estate investment trusts 143,654         
Index funds 103,906         

2,226,730$      
 

 
Significant Significant

Quoted Prices in Other Unobservable
Active Markets Observable Inputs

(Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Stocks
Large cap 641,122$        -$                    -$                     641,122$        
Mid cap 259,281          -                     -                      259,281         
International developed 263,445          -                     -                      263,445         
International emerging 147,357          -                     -                      147,357         

Bond Funds
Intermediate-term fund 328,716          -                     -                      328,716         
Inflation-protected fund 339,249          -                     -                      339,249         

Real estate investment trusts 143,654          -                     -                      143,654         
Index Funds 103,906          -                     -                      103,906         

Total assets at fair value 2,226,730$     -$                    -$                     2,226,730$     
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
Donated Materials and Services 
 
Donated materials and services for the years ended June 30 were: 
 

2011

Salaries and benefits 340,616$         
Materials and supplies 21,209             
Office space 17,280             
Other miscellaneous expenses 3,600               

382,705$         

 
All donated materials and services were provided by the College. 
 
Endowment Funds 
 
The endowment fund net asset composition is as follows: 
 
At June 30, 2011 Temporarily Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total

Donor restricted endowment 
funds 41,790$          922,653$         964,443$        

41,790$          922,653$         964,443$        
 

Changes in endowment net assets are as follows: 

At June 30, 2011 Temporarily Permanently
Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment assets, beginning of year July 1, 2010 -$                    -$                     -$                    

Investment return:
Investment income 3,994             -                      3,994             
Net realized and unrealized

appreciation (depreciation) 47,705           -                      47,705           

Contributions -                     922,653          922,653         

Appropriation of endowment assets
for expenditures (9,909)            -                      (9,909)            

Other changes -$                    -$                     -$                    

Endowment assets, end of year June 30, 2011 41,790$          922,653$         964,443$        
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 
The components of endowment funds classified as temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net 
assets as of June 30, 2011 are as follows: 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets 2011

The portion of perpetual endowment funds subject 
to a time restriction under SPMIFA:

With purpose restrictions 41,790$           

Permanently restricted net assets:
The portion of perpetual endowment funds that is required
to be retained permanently either by explicit donor stipulation
or by SPMIFA 922,653$         

 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
The Foundation provides scholarships to the College based on the terms of the donations.  The Foundation also 
provides various departmental and program support.  During the year the Foundation provided $365,740 to the 
College in the form of departmental and program support.   
 
The Foundation conducts business with a national bank and its Divisional President is a member of the Board of 
Directors.  The Divisional President abstains from voting on financing matters that could be considered a conflict 
of interest.  The banking relationship includes general banking services.  
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College of Western Idaho 
Other Postemployment Benefits – Schedule of Funding Progress 

June 30, 2011 
 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

OPEB Plan

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets

Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL)

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL)    
(2) : (1)

Funded 
Ratios     

(1) : (2)
Annual Covered 

Payroll

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll     
(3) : (5)

Retiree Healthcare 7/1/2010 -$            382,000$  382,000$   0.0% 10,818,000$     3.5%

Long-Term Disability
Life Insurance 7/1/2010 -$            154,000$  154,000$   0.0% 10,818,000$     1.4%
Healthcare 7/1/2010 -$            138,000$  138,000$   0.0% 10,818,000$     1.3%

Funded Status and Funding Progress
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College of Western Idaho 
Other Postemployment Benefits – Schedule of Funding Progress 

June 30, 2010 
 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

OPEB Plan

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets

Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL)

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL)    
(2) : (1)

Funded 
Ratios     

(1) : (2)
Annual Covered 

Payroll

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll     
(3) : (5)

Retiree Healthcare 7/1/2008 -$            47,000$    47,000$     0.0% 2,188,000$       2.1%

Long-Term Disability
Life Insurance 7/1/2008 -$            18,000$    18,000$     0.0% 2,188,000$       0.8%
Healthcare 7/1/2008 -$            22,000$    22,000$     0.0% 2,188,000$       1.0%
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College of Western Idaho 
Schedules of Operating Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 
 
 

Academic Student Public Auxiliary Institutional Operations and 
Instruction Support Services Service Scholarships Expenses Support Maintenance Total

Operating Expenses
Wages and salaries 11,001,686$   1,990,704$  1,821,145$   212,945$  51,529$         86,383$         1,662,113$     427,072$           17,253,577$  
Taxes and benefits 2,637,517       696,233       741,642        80,175      572                33,526           611,000          206,974             5,007,639      
Supplies 1,245,027       453,245       171,678        16,082      -                     7,997             117,112          149,165             2,160,306      
Repairs and maintenance 148,039          497,973       55,082          1,651        -                     653                39,003            219,384             961,785         
Travel 91,138            57,139         58,089          6,621        -                     137                45,508            2,913                 261,545         
Vehicles 109,917          898              47                 -                -                     -                    2,740              6,475                 120,077         
Services 79,995            174,268       375,246        23,655      -                     499                500,638          182,774             1,337,075      
Miscellaneous 148,281          300,063       222,187        61,264      -                     -                    976,452          40,466               1,748,713      
Insurance, rent, utilities 43,264            169,802       10,817          6,289        -                     -                    135,303          2,357,118          2,722,593      
Financial aid -                      -                   -                    -                71,844           -                    -                      -                         71,844           
Non-capital equipment 387,995          10,006         811               -                -                     -                    1,117              -                         399,929         
Depreciation 410,181          230,945       16,665          -                -                     4,719             434,756          538,204             1,635,470      

 Fund transfer 690,751          (479,851)      (30,842)         2,553        -                     (24,000)         (158,611)         -                         -                     

Total operating expenses 16,993,791$   4,101,425$ 3,442,567$  411,235$ 123,945$      109,914$      4,367,131$    4,130,545$       33,680,553$ 
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College of Western Idaho 
Schedules of Operating Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2010  
 
 

Academic Student Public Auxiliary Institutional Operations and 
Instruction Support Services Service Scholarships Expenses Support Maintenance Total

Operating Expenses
Wages and salaries 8,956,667$     1,864,298$  1,569,360$   183,359$  69,684$         101,005$       1,724,042$     398,274$           14,866,689$  
Taxes and benefits 2,525,244       747,636       726,448        87,554      425                43,557           688,736          224,522             5,044,122      
Supplies 2,870,350       616,395       340,989        36,467      -                     428                177,640          567,439             4,609,708      
Repairs and maintenance 139,217          576,052       43,136          1,200        -                     77                  21,078            184,560             965,320         
Travel 55,344            51,688         45,663          9,657        -                     1,737             68,373            5,197                 237,659         
Vehicles 63,901            954              106               -                -                     -                    33                   3,366                 68,360           
Services 122,954          227,831       207,061        12,609      -                     4,829             1,202,661       160,808             1,938,753      
Miscellaneous 169,900          206,962       99,793          55,043      423                613                662,253          54,125               1,249,112      
Insurance, rent, utilities 38,324            170,297       8,851            12,432      -                     -                    106,543          2,219,500          2,555,947      
Financial aid -                      -                   -                    -                21,074           -                    -                      -                         21,074           
Non-capital equipment 3,450,576       11,905         1,487            -                -                     -                    -                      -                         3,463,968      
Depreciation 280,680          372,682       35,998          -                -                     10,194           926,775          109,131             1,735,460      
Fund transfer 209,223          (210,623)      -                    -                -                     -                    1,400              -                         -                     

Total operating expenses 18,882,380$   4,636,077$ 3,078,892$  398,321$ 91,606$         162,440$      5,579,534$    3,926,922$       36,756,172$ 
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College of Western Idaho 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

June 30, 2011 
 
 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title
  CFDA 
Number  Pass-through Number  

  
Expenditures 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH
STATE OF IDAHO

Adult Basic Education-Administered Basic Grant Program
Federal Direct Services 84.002* F ABE DO1 10B 660 390,082$     
Teacher Training and Program Improvement 84.002* F ABE L01 10A 660 31,571         
Federal Incarcerated 84.002* F ABE D03 10D 660 8,190           
EL Civics 84.002* F ABE E01 10A 660 81,284         
Federal Administration (5%) 84.002* F ABE D02 10A 660 20,000         
IMAS Contract 84.002* F ABE L05 10C 660 5,000           
Skills Tutor Contract 84.002* F ABE D01 10C 660 13,444         
  Total Adult Basic Education-
    Administered Basic Grant Program 549,571       

Career Technical Education-Basic Grants to States
Student Organizations-
  PTSO Prof Dvlpmt Accounting Srvcs 84.048* F CPL MPTA AD 10A 660 50,722         
Joint Student Leadership 84.048* F CPL JSL AG 11A 660 11,500         
Perkins - Academic Skills Development 84.048* PFF B01 10A 660 81,329         
Perkins - Program Improvement (Equipment) 84.048* PFF B06 10C 660 139,196       
Perkins - Professional Development 84.048* PFF B04 10B 660 37,090         
Perkins - ALP Region III FY 2010 84.048* F ALP L010 TP 10A 660 18,109         
Perkins - Advanced Learning Partnership Contribution 84.048* F ALP L010 TP 10A 660 64,367         
Perkins - Adv. Learning Partnership Revenue 
  from Schools FY 2011 84.048* F ALP L010 TP 10A 660 77,472         
Technical Math Curriculum 84.048* F CDP CTMC CP 10A 660 2,086           
Perkins - Technical Skills Assessments 84.048* PFF B07 10D 660 9,977           
Perkins - PACE 84.048* PFF B08 10F 660 47,568         
Perkins - Secondary to Postsecondary Links 84.048* PFF B08 10E 660 29,770         
  Total Career Technical Education-
     Basic Grants to States 569,186       

Education State Fiscal Stabilization –
  American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) 84.394 828863667 78,000         

Grants to States for State Student Incentives 84.069 5,441           
College Access Challenge Grant Program 84.378 3,315           

Total Department of Education 1,205,513    

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR PASS-THROUGH
STATE OF IDAHO

Grow Green Agreement 17.275 CWIU U3U 203 CC:31330 354,770       

Total Department of Labor 354,770       

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES 1,560,284$  

*Denotes a major program cluster
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College of Western Idaho 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

June 30, 2011 
 
 
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) presents the activity of all federal 
grant activity of the College under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2011.  The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion 
of the operation of the College, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net 
assets, or cash flows of the College. 
 
 
Note 2 - Basis of Presentation 
 

a) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on an accrual basis of accounting.  
 

b) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
College of Western Idaho 
Nampa, Idaho 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements and the discretely presented component unit of the College of 
Western Idaho (the College), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the 
College’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 07, 2011. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the College’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
College’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the College’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the  
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determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, others 
within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
Boise, Idaho 
November 07, 2011 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements that could have a Direct and 
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance 

with OMB Circular A-133 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
College of Western Idaho 
Nampa, Idaho 
 
 
Compliance 
 
We have audited College of Western Idaho’s (the College) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the College’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The 
College’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
the College’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the College’s compliance based 
on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s compliance with those requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the College of Western Idaho, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.  
 
Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of the College, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the College’s internal control over  
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compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management, others 
within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
Boise, Idaho 
November 07, 2011 
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College of Western Idaho 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

June 30, 2011 
 
 
SECTION I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued Unqualified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified not considered to 
  be material weaknesses? None reported 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weaknesses identified? No 
 Significant deficiencies identified not considered to 
  be material weaknesses? None reported 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
 major programs: Unqualified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
 reported in accordance with Circular A-133, Section 510(a)? No 
 
Identification of major programs:  
 
Name of Federal Program     CFDA Number 
Department of Education – Adult Basic Education  84.002   
Department of Education – Career Technical Education  84.048 
Department of Labor – Grow Green Agreement  17.275 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
 Type A and Type B programs:  $ 300,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  No 
 
 
SECTION II - Financial Statement Findings None 
 
 
SECTION III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs None 
 
 
 


